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STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

1. Did the trial court err in calculating interest at the rate of 8.5%?

2. Did the trial court err in permitting the Long Company to exercise its option
to purchase all of the real estate?

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

The facts as stated in Appellant’s original brief are herein incorporated by reference.
Some of the facts as they appear in Respondent’s brief are inaccurate or incomplete and are
correctly stated as follows:

1. Ronnie Long did not inherit the 2,225 acres of Kenneth Long’s real estate.
Kenneth Long, a non-tribal member, had mortgaged that real estate to the Bank and it was
deeded to the Bank in lieu of foreclosure through the Kenneth Long Estate. Ronnie Long nor
Long Family Land and Cattle Company, Inc. never did own the real estate.

2. The land was deeded to the Bank during the fall of 1996, The Lease With Option
to Purchase, which was prepared by the Bank, was not entered into until Decembef 5, 1996,
That agreement did not mention that the 2,225 acres and the house in Timber Lake would be -
deeded to the Bank as the Bank already had received the deed from the Kenneth Long Estate.

3. The loan agreement did not state that the Bank would make any loans to Long
Company. It stated that if the BIA increased its guarantee to 90% and rescheduled the
existing loans and guaranteed a $70,000.00 operating loan, then the Bank would make an
additional loan for $37,500.00 for the purchase of calves. The BIA did not increase the
guarantee on the existing loans nor guarantee a new operating line. The Bank was not under -

any obligation to make any additional loans pursuant to the loan agreement.



4. The Bank received approximately $88,000.00 of CRP payments as rental
payments under the two-year Lease With Option to Purchase. Prior to receiving those
payments, however, the Bank had to pay off the State of South Dakota CRP enhancement

program for $82,447.88. It had the first mortgage. Had the Bank not paid off the state, the

CRP payments of approximately $44,000.00 per year would have gone to the state since it
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held the assignment of those payments.
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5. The Long Company requested a sixty-day extension on the Lease With Option to
Purchase a few days prior to its expiration. The request was denied by the Bank. The lease
provided that if the Long Company exercised its option to purchase and paid 5% éf the
purchase price it had sixty days to make the final payment. The Long Company never did
exercise its option to purchase nor provide 5% of the purchase price. Nothing in the Lease
With Option to Purchase entitled the Long Company to a sixty-day extension on that
agreement. The Long Company had two years to purchase the land but it did not do so.

6. The Long Company did not hold over on the entire 2,225 acres. It held over on
about 960 acres, which it is still in possession of since the lease expired December 5, 1998.
The Long Company has paid no rent, real estate taxes or any other reimbursement to the
Bank. It has simply squatted on the land without paying anything for about five years.

ARGUMENTS AND AUTHORITY

1. Did the trial court err in calculating interest at the rate of 8.5%?

Long Company, in its brief and statement of the issues, erroneously is alleging that
the trial court awarded interest at the rate of 2.7% on the jury verdict. The trial court
calculated interest at 8.5%. There is absolutely no indication whatsoever that the trial court

used 2.7% in its calculation of interest.
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The Bank and Long Company both submitted briefs after the trial calculating pre-
judgment interest. A copy of thé Bank’s brief and calculation of interest is hereto attached
and marked as (Attachment 1). A copy of the Long Company’s Motion to Include Intgrest
and Reply brief are hereto attached and marked as (Attachments 2 and 3) respectively. After
the briefs were submitted, the trial court adopted the calculation of interest submitted by the
Bank, which was a calculation at the rate of 8.5% per annum.

There is no specification as to the rate for pre-judgment interest under the Cheyenne
River Sioux Tribe Law and Order Code. Under South Dakota Law, SDCL 21-1-13.1, pre-
judgment interest may be awarded on damages arising from a contract at the contract rate, if
so provided in the contract; otherwise, if pre-judgment interest is awarded, it shall be at the

Category B rate of interest as specified in § 54-3-16. The Category B rate is 10%. In this

case, however, the trial court awarded interest at 8.5%. The trial court had previously ruled
that the Lease With Option to Purchase and Loan Agreement comprised one contract. The

lease agreement gave the Long Company credit, against the option purchase price, for the

amount paid as rent each year, in the event the purchase option was exercised. Interest at the

i

rate of 8.5% on the option purchase price was to be deducted from the annual rent payment

and the balance would lower the purchase price. By that contract, the interest rate of 8.5% PO

was set forth and the trial court adopted this rate of interest.

The Bank reiterates its arguments in its Appellant’s Brief wherein it opposes the
awarding of pre-judgment interest whatsoever, Pre-judgment interest is impossible to
accurately calculate in this case since we do not know how the jury arrived at their verdict of
$750,000.00. Damages for which the Long Company presented evidence happened over a

period of years. The jury’s verdict was substantially less than the damage evidence presented



by the Long Company in their trial exhibit #23. (Attachment 4) Pre-judgment interest may,
in certain cases, be awarded from the oate the damages were incurred. It is a question of fact
what the damages were and on which date they occurred. In thlS case we do not know what
the jury decided as to amounts and on what dates Since the jury returned a verdlct of
$750,000.00, well under the $1,236,792.00 which Long Company requested we now have
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no way of knowmg how the jury calculated damages
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Interest should not be awarded in this case. The trial court submitted special
interrogatory #6 to the jury. Special interrogatory #6 asked the jury what the amount of the

damages was and whether interest should be added. It d1d not set forth an individual line for

each Ioss mcurred and the respectwe time for each loss. This specml 1nterrogatory was
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submltted w1th no objectlon from counsel for the Long Company No other spec1a1
interrogatory -was proposed by the Long Company.

In Alvine v Mercedes-Benz 620 N.W. 2d 608 {S.D. 2001) pre-judgment interest was

denied. The jury was instructed that pre-judgment interest was in its discretion. There were
no special interrogatories where the jury could answer the damage award for each individual
damage and the respective time that the loss occurred. The court stated at pg 614:

“Under SDCL 21-1-13.1 any person who is entitled to recover damages . . . is entitled
to recover interest thereon from the date that the loss or damage occurred . . . If there isa
qggﬁion of fact as to when the loss or damage occurred, pre-judgment mterest “sitail
commence on the date specnﬁed in the verdict or decision . . . If necessary, special
interrogatories shall be submitted to the jury. Pre~3udgment interest on damages arising from
a contract shall be at the contract rate, if so provided in the contract; otherwise, if pre-
judgment interest is awarded, it shall be at the Category B rate specified in § 54-3-16. The
coutt shall compute and award the interest provided in this section and shall include such
interest in the judgment in the same manner as it taxes costs.

Pre-judgment interest is now mandatory, not discretionary. However in this case,
the ju jury was instructed that the allowance of pre-Judgmemerest was in its discrefion.
Also, the instruction did not set forth an individual line for each loss incurred (vehicle,
storage, and rental replacement) and the respective time of loss (for each). This instruction




rate. Ifinterest were calculated at 10%, the Category B rate, a simple multiplication of the
total interest awarded by the trial court of $123,131.81 can be multiplied by 117.6471%. In
the event this court decides pre-judgment interest is allowable, this Court should affirm the
trial court.

2. Did the trial court err in permitting the Long Company to exercise its opﬁon
to purchase a portion of the real estate as opposed to all of the real estate?

The Bank, in Appellant’s Brief, has argued that the trial court erred in granting the
Long Company an option to purchase approximately 960 acres of the real estate which was
the subject of the Lease With Option to Purchase. Those same arguments are incorporated
by reference in this reply brief. The additional question which will be addressed in this brief
is whether the trial court should have allowed the Long Company the option to purchase all
of the real estate as opposed to approximately 960 acres which it allowed.

Shortly after the expiration of the term of the Lease With Option to Purchase, which
was December 5, 1998, the Bank sold approximately 320 acres to Ralph and Norma J.
Pesicka for cash. The remaining real estate was then sold to Edward and Mary Maciejewski
under a Contract for Deed in two parcels. Approximately 960 acres was sold as Parcel 1 and
the other one half as Parcel 2. Woccupied by the Long Company. The
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Long Company continued to occupy Parcel 2 after the expiration of the Lease With Option to
Purchase. Parcel 1 had been paid for in full by the Maciejewskis and was deeded to them by
the Bank. The trial court granted the Long Company an option to purchase Parcel 2 at the
purchase price listed in the Contract for Deed between the Bank and the Maciejewskis. Since

the jury found that the Bank did not use self-help in obtaining possession of the real estate




sold to the Pesickas and Parcel 1, which was sold to the Maciejewskis, the court did not grant
the Long Company an option to purchase that real estate.

The Pesickas purchased the 320 acres having no knowledge of any interest by the

e

Long Company. The Maciejewskis purchased Parcel 1 of the remaining real estate having no

knowledge of any interest of the Long Company in that real estate. Neither the Pesickas nor

the Maciejewskis are tribal members. They were good faith purchasers. The trial court in its
discretion did not grant the equitable remedy of specific performance allowing the Long
Company an option to purchase all of the real estate. Its decision was not clearly erroneous
and should not be reversed by this court.

The Long Company’s counsel has quoted a portion of the trial court Order dated
January 3, 2003 (Attachment 5) wherein it stated that the Lease With Option to Purchase
remains intact. The remaining portion of the court’s Order, however, in not allowing the
Long Company an option to purchase, is very pertinent. It is as follows:

“However, the jury concluded that the Bank did not violate the tribal law prohibiting
self-help remedies when it conveyed parcels of the land covered by the lease with an option
to purchase to the other Defendants. The court has no authority therefore to set aside the land
conveyances to the other Defendants.”

Neither the Pesickas, the Macigjewskis, nor the Bank are tribal members. The land

involved in those transactions was deeded land. The Bank, nor either of the other

Defendants, used self-help in obtaining possession of the land. The court therefore ruled that

-

it lacked authority to set aside these transfers. Even if the court did have authority to set
aside those transfers, it certainly has discretion to not grant the remedy of specific
performance. This is especially true in light of the fact that Long Company’s pleadings did
not state a cause of action requesting specific performance. The trial court properly ruled

that it would not set aside the transfers to the Pesickas and the Maciejewskis. The Long
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Company definitely should not be granted an option to purchase that real estate now,
approximately five years after the option expired.

Long Company erroneously argues that it should be granted an option to purchase all
of the real estate for a reduced purchase price of $363,125.36. The original option to
purchase price was to be $468,000.00. Had the Long Company exercised its option, which it

did not, it would have been reduced by approximately $16, 000.00 for the sale of the house in
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Timber Lake. It would also have been reduced by about $3,500.00 per year for two years
ff, e F A

purchase price. The entire lease payment of $44,198.00 per year was never to be credlted i Loport

HLrer
against the purchase price. Interest accrued on the purchase price of $468,000.00 from ran .
- Jurg vis oloc
December 5, 1996 if the Long Company exercised its option to purchase. 2
tég
Long Company’s argument of a reduced purchase price of $363,125.36 is completely /6
5%
without merit. If the purchase price was lowered, and no interest charged, the Long "3y A

Company would have had use of all of the real estate for the two-year lease period at no cost
whatsoever. This is completely contrary to the terms of the lease. The use of all the land for
a two-year period at no cost would unjustly enrich the Long Company and should not be
allowed. The court should also be reminded that the Long Company has had the use of 960
acres of the land which was not deeded to the other Defendants continuously since the lease
expired and has paid nothing,

Counsel for Long Company in its brief erroneously alleges that the Bank breached the
loan agreement immediately when it was signed on December 5, 1996 by failing to make an
immediate, advance of $70,000.00 for an operating loan and failing to make a $37,500.00

loan for the purchase of 110 head of additional cattle. A reading of the loan agreement,
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however, did not indicate that the Bank would immediately make a $70,000.00 operating

loan whatsoever. The lbs_m agreement stated .that the Bank wbu_id request, among other

things, a $70,000.00 BIA guaranteed operating note. The Bank did so and heard absolutely

nothing back from the BIA until February 13, 1997. By that time Long’s cattle were already |

decea_Lsed. The Bank, in the loan agreement, did not sfate that it would make a $37,500.00

loan to purchase 110 .additional head of cattle. That would only happén if the BIA

guaranteed the operating loan and increased the guarantee on other existing loans. The BIA

did not do so. o
Counéel also is erroneously éileging- that the Bank was required to make a $40,000.00

emergency loan to Long Compény fo préserve its cbllateral pursuant to 25 CFR 103.22 (d).

_Nothing in that regulétion, however, requires the Bank to make an emergency loan-

whatsoever. That régulation éimply auth_orizés such a loan if the Bank decides to do so. In

this case, the Bank did make a number of emergency loans to Long Company. One loan was

made for approximately $17,00.0..00 for pre—payment. of the tribal leases for the ﬁext year. A

second loan was made for $5,000.00 for operating. A third loan was made for $2,250.00 to _ :

| purchase a snowmob'ile‘ so that Ronnie'Long could get to the cattle to feed them. The Bank, |

‘thought it was not required to do so, did make approximately $24, 250"00 of emergency loans

to attempt to help the Long Company and to preserve the Bank’s collateral Nothmg in the

law requires a bank to make unlimited loans. 25 CFR 103.22 (d) limits the maximum

amount of emergency loans that a bank can make and still be covered by the BIA guarantee.

It does ﬁot require any loans to be méde whatsoewl/er. : ' ' : -
Counsel for the Lbng Coxﬁpany also makes false allegationé that the Bank substituted

a “bad” cash flow, -which would not work, for the one prepared by Dennis Huber. The fact
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is, however, that the cash flow submitted to the BIA by the Bank in requesting the increase in
guarantee and a BIA guaranteed operating line was not prepared by the Bank. It was
prepared by John Lemke with the help of Ronnie Long. It was faxed from the Cheyenne
River Sioux Tribe Chairman’s office on December 12, 1996, The reason that this cash flow
was necessary was that Mr. Huber’s cash flow was incorrect. It substantially inflated the
income which the Long Company could expect. His cash flow duplicated the sale of calves.
Mr. Huber, under cross—examinatioh, acknowledged that he had made a mistake in
calculating the income from the sale of calves and yearlings. His cash flow listed the sale of
calves in year one and then mistakenly again listed those same calves as yearlings to be sold
for $187,000.00 in year two. Those yearlings however would have been sold the previous
year as calves. For this reason, a second cash flow was required. The Bank had absolutely
nothing to do with the preparation of any of the cash flows submitied to the BIA.

Lastly, counsel for Long Company in its brief at paragraph 11. has alleged that there
is a title insurance policy and that if this court would allow Long Company to purchase all of
the real estate, Maciejewskis nor Pesickas would be damaged. Firstly, there is absolutely no :
evidence in the record that there is a title insurance policy. Secondly, whether there is or is
not a title insurance policy is completely irrelevant and immaterial. Allegations of a title
insurance policy being in existence should absolutely not have been brought before this
court.

Additionally, counsel cites CRST Law and Order Code § 10-1-5 for the proposition
that Long Company were to be given notice before the property was sold. That code section,
however, is not applicable. It pertains to land that was foreclosed upon. The land sold to the

Maciejewskis and the Pesickas was not foreclosed. The Bank never did foreclose against the
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property. Kenneth Long’s personal representative deeded the Bank the property. Secondly,
counsel cites § 10-2-6 (6) for the proposition that the Long Company held over and retained
possession for more than sixty days after the expiration of the term of the lease without any
demand of possession or notice to quit. Long Company was given a notice that the lease
would expire and possession was demanded. Ronnie Long wrote a letter to Steve Hégeman,
CEO of the Bank, dated December 1, 1998 requesting a sixty-day extension on the lease. A
response letter written by Charles Simon, Vice-President of the Bank, which was Plaintiff’s
exhibit 18, notified Ronnie Long that there would be no extension of time from the
December 5, 1998 deadline for the option to purchase. Possession of this property by the
leasee, Long Family Land and Cattle Company, Inc., would terminate on December 5, 1998.
(attachment 6) That letter plainly demanded possession of the propertylby the leasee on
December 5, 1998, Additionaily, Long Family Land and Cattle Company, inc. did not hold
over on the property sold to the Pesickas and Parcel 1 of that property sold to the
Maciejewskis. It continued to hold over only on Parcel 2. CRST 10-2-6(6) is not applicable.
CONCLUSION i
Pre~judgment interest should not be allowed and the trial court should be reversed,
however if this court allows pre-judgment interest, interest should be calculated as ordered by
the trial court. The trial court’s decision to not aliow the Long Company to purchase that real

estate previously deeded to the Pesickas and the Maciejewskis should be affirmed.

Dated this 27" day of February, 2004, 7 - / y M o

/
David A. Von Wald
Attorney for Plaing Commerce Bank
P.O. Box 468
Hoven, South Dakota 57450
605-948-2550
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CHEYENNE RIVER SIQUX TRIBAL COURT IN CIVIL COQURT
CHEYENNE RIVER SIQUX TRIBE
CHEYENNE RIVER INDIAN RESERVATION

LONG FAMILY LAND AND CATTLE
COMPANY, INC. - RONNIE AND LILA LONG,
Plaintiffs,

vs. DEFENDANT PLAINS COMMERCE
BANK'’S OPPOSITION TO
ASSESSMENT OF INTEREST

EDWARD AND MARY MACIEJEWSKI

AND RALPH H. AND NORMA J. PESICKA,

AND THE BANK OF HOVEN, NOW PLAINS

COMMERCE BANK, R-120-99
Defendants.

1. Although the jury instructed that interest should be
assessed on damages, we now have no way of knowing how the jury
derived at damages of $750,000.00. Had the jury awarded
&amages of $1,236,792.00, which was presented by Plaintiff’s
Exhibit 23, we could have assumed that the jury accepted the
damages presented by Plaintiff. They did not, however. SDCL
21-1-13.1, which became effective in 1990, requires interest be
assessed damages are calculable. Interest is not allowed when
damages are intangible; including injury to financial standing.
In this case, damages were certainly intangible. The statute
also requires written interrogatories be submitted to the jury
to calculate when the damages were incurred and the amount when.
they are calculable. No such interrogatories were submitted

nor did Plaintiff request any. Plaintiff made no objection to
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the Court’s interrogatories, and especially since the jury did
not award damages as calculated by Plaintiff’s Exhibit. 23,
interest should be barred.

2. It is pure speculation to think that the jury awarded
damages, as set forth in Plaintiff’s Motion For Interest, of
the exact amount requested for the years 1997, 1998, 1999, 2000
and only a portion of the damages requested for 2001. We have
absolutely no idea how it is that the jury derived at the
damages of $750,000.00. Without knowledge as to the jury’s way
of calculating damages, we simply cannot calculate interest.

Additionally, it is unknown which cause of action the jury

found that the damages were derived from. If the damages, or a

portion of them, were from the discrimination action, the

damages certainly would be incalculable and intangible, not

subject to interest. Interest should simply not be allowed in ;
this case.

3. Even if the Court decides that interest should be
allowed, however, it should certainly not be calculated as
proposed by Plaintiff. Interest would not start until damages
occurred. If we assume that the death of the cows and
yearlings in January and February of 1997 were a part of the
damages assessed, interest would not start on the date of their
loss. Likewise, interest would not start on the date of loss

of the yearlings. Plaintiff’s evidence was that he would have




sold them on or about October 1, 1997. His figures for loss
damages were when sold as yearlings in the fall. As to
interest on damages for the death of the cows, it should not
accrue prior to judgment. Plaintiff’s evidence at trial was
that he lost profits from the calves the dead cows would have
produced. This assumes that the cows, if living, would not
have been sold and would continue to have calves. Plaintiff
would be placed in a better position by assessing interest as
of the date of death of the cows plus loss of profits from
their offspring, than he would have been in had the contract
net been breached. Under contract law, one is not to be placed
in a better position by a breach of a contract than he would
have been in had no breach occurred. The value of the cows
listed on Plaintiff’s Exhibit 23 was $142,000.00. That amount
should bear no interest until the date of judgment.

4. Beginning in the year 1999 through 2002, Plaintiff’s
damages were more speculative in nature than for 1997 and 1998.
Although it is impossible to know how the jury reduced damages
asked for, it is likely that damages were reduced beginning in
1999, Plaintiff’s damage calculations in Exhibit 23 for the
year 1999 assumed he would have had another one hundred head of
coWws. These cows were to be purchased by a loan he alleged the
Bank should have made of $37,500.00. The loan agreement only

required this loan if the guarantees were increased by the BIA.
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Since those guarantees were not increased, the jury likely
found these additional damages from the loss of profits from
the 100 head of cows should not be awarded. Additionally in
the calculation of damages, there is no repayment of the
537,500.00 loan, nor interest on that loan. Plaintiff’s
calculations of losses for all of 1999 through 2002 included
therloss of profits from testimony of how much he thought he
could have made from the use of the land. Plaintiff’s losses
also included not receiving ASC payments, which evidence
existed were much lower than set out on exhibit 23. For the
last four years of damages, on Exhibit 23, there is no offset
calculation of rent, interest or taxes Plaintiff would have had
to pay if it had bought the land or continued to rent it. The
last four years of damages presented by Plaintiff are very
likely the years for which the jury reduced the damages.

5. Although interest should definitely not be assessed as
a matter of law, if the Court finds that interest should be
assessed, Plaintiff’s calculations of interest should not be
used. The evidence indicated that Plaintiff’s normal operation
for cattle was the sale of the yearlings approximately October
1% of each year. The first income Plaintiff would have derived
from the sale of yearlings, which had died, would have been
October 1, 1997. That would be the first date which interest

should start to accrue. Plaintiff’s Exhibit 23 showed damages
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in 1997 of $174,856.00. From that damage calculation, interest

should not‘be included oh $142,600.00 for the cows that died
since loss of‘future profits from the salé of their calves was
‘asked for. This woul& leave a net amount of $32,256.00
commencing October 1, 1997. For 1998, assumihg that the jury
accepted Plaintiff’s calsulation, interest would commence on an
additional $87,972.00 from October 1, 1998; This wouid leaVe
damages of $629,772.00,7which had been awarded by the jury.
(3750,000.00 - $32,256.00 - $87,972.00) Takiﬁg away the
$l42,600.00 for the value of the dead cows would leave a'net_of
$487;172.00. If one averaged that amount for the next four
years, an additional $121,793.00 would be added each year
commehéing October 1'1999 ahd interest'wsuld be assessed on
that amount.

6. Plaintiff has erroneously compounded interest in its
cslculation. Interest oh interest is not obtainable under
‘South Dakota Law. Piaintiff Calcslatéd-the Category B rate of
interest pursuant to SDCL 54;3—16 at the rate of 10%. No
interest rate is actually set forth in the Cheyenne River Sioux
Tribe Law and Order Code. In this.case,'however, the written
. document which Defendant is alleged to have breached -is a LesSe
"With Option To Purchase wherein interest at ths rate of 8.5%
was to.bs charged to the.Plaintiff if the land was purchdsed.

The rate of interest the wfittsn agreement designdted to be
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charged Plaintiff should also be charged Defendant for damages
from a breach of that agreement. Interest at the rate of 8.5%
on the damages as set forth above are attached as Exhibit A.
In the event the Court would accept Defendant’s method of
calculating interest, but decide the interest rate should be
10% rather than 8.5%, a simple multiplication of the final
figure of $123,131.81 times 117.6471% would accomplish that.
(Example $1,000.60 x 10% = $100.00; $1,000.00 x 8.5% = $85.00;
$85.00 x 117.6471% = $100.00)

CONCLUSION

Interest should not be assessed since damages for loss of
profits are intangible damages not subject to prejudgment
interest under South Dakota Law. We have no way of determining
how the.jury derived at their damage figure. Likewise we do
not know whether the damages were awarded under the contract
action, or under the discrimination action, nor how they were
calculated. Considering the speculative nature of any
calculation of interest, no interest as a matter of law should
be assessed.

Even if interest should be assessed, interest should not
be compounded as Plaintiff has proposed. Additionally there is
nothing in the evidence to assume the jury would have awarded
damages for the first four years of damages presented, a

portion of the fifth year, and nothing for the last year, as



Plaintiff suggests. This would obviously locad interest on the
earlier years and thus inflate the interest calculation.
Although interest should not be assessed, Defendant’s
calculation of interest, although admittedly speculative, is a
more accurate approach using the evidence presented and should

be adopted over Plaintiff’s Attachment A.

Respectfully submitted this 30" day of/; npary, 2003. y;
hY

David A. Von Wald, Attorney
P.O. Box 468

Hoven, South Dakota 57450
{605) 948-2550

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Comes now David A. Von Wald, Attorney for Defendant,
Plains Commerce Bank, and hereby certifies that I served by
first class mail, postage prepaid, a true and correct copy of
the foregoing DEFENDANT PLAINS COMMERCE BANK'S OPPQSITION TO
ASSESSMENT OF INTEREST on the 30“’day of January, 2003,
addressed to the following:

James P. Hurley Kenneth E. Jasper
P.0. Box 2670 P.O. Box 2093
Rapid City, SD 57709-2670 Rapid City, SD 57709-2093

Dated this 30*" day of January, 2003.

(b A lo N0 ff

av1d A. Von Wald, Attorney
P.0O. Box 468
Hoven, SPb 57450
(605) 948-2550
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Damages for 1997 (10-01-97)

$32,256.00
X 8.5%
2,741.76
10~-01-99 2,741.76
10-01-00 2,741.76
10-01-01 2,741.76
10-01-02 2,741.76
01-31-03 923.73
14,632.53

Damages for 1999 (10-01-99)
$121,793.00
X 8.5%
10-01~00 10,352.41
10-01-01 10,352.41
10-01-02 10,352.41
01-31-03 3,488.62
34,545,85

Damages for 2001 (10-01-01)
5121,793.00
X 8.5%
10-01-02 10,352.41
01-31-03 3,488,462
13,841.03

Ve ERGRNE

Damages for 1998 (10-01-98)

$87,972.00

X 8.5%

16-01-99 7,477.62
10-01-00 7,477.62
i0-01-01 7,4717.62
10-01-02 7,477.62
01-31-03 2,519.86
32,430.34

Damages for 2000 (10-01-00)
$121,793.00

X 8.5%

10-01-01 10,352.41
10-01-02 10,352.41
01-31-03 3,488.62
24,193, 44

Damages for 2002 (10~01-02)
$121,793.00
X 8.5%
01-31-03 3,488.62

Interest On Damages 1997 $ 14,632.53 -

1998 32,430.34
1999 34,545.85
2000 24,193.44
2001 13,841.03
2002 3,488.62

Total Interest 5123,131.81
as of 01-31-03

EXHIBIT A
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CHEYENNE RIVER SIOUX TRIBAL COURT IN CIVIL COURT
CHEYENNE RIVER SIOUX TRIBE
CHEYENNE RIVER INDIAN RESERVATION
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LONG FAMILY LAND AND CATTLE
COMPANY, INC.-RONNIE AND LILA LONG,

Plaintiffs,
VS. PLAINTIFFS’ MOTION TO
INCLUDE INTEREST IN THE
EDWARD AND MARY MACIEJEWSKI JUDGMENT
and RALPH H. AND NORMA J. PSICKA,
and THE BANK. OF HOVEN,
R-120-99
Defendants.
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Plaintiffs, Long Family Land and Cattle Company, Inc. and Ronnie and Lila Long, move
the Court to include in the judgment the amount of prejudgment interest in addition to the jury
verdict damages of $750,000, upon the following grounds:

1) The Court instructed the jury in Instruction 10a that if the jury retumns a verdict for
the Plaintiffs, then the jury must decide whether Plaintiffs are entitled to prejudgment interest.

2) In special interrogatory six, the jury awarded damages in favor of Plaintiffs and
against Defendant Bank in the sum of $750,000, and advised the Court that prejudgment interest
should be added to the judgment.

3) SDCL 21-1-13.1 provides that “when prejudgment interest is awarded, it shall be
at the Category B rate specified in § 54-3-16 (10%). “The Court shall compute and award the
interest provided in this section and shall include such interest in the judgment in the same
manrer as it taxes costs.” SDCL 21-1-13.1 provides that Plaintiffs are entitled to recover interest

and damages “from the day that the loss or damage occurred.”



4) The trial evidence established when the Plaintiffs’ loss or damage occurred. The
bank breached the Loan Agreement as soon as it was signed December 5, 1996, by failing to
advance the $70,000 in operating costs to the Plaintiffs, as promised, and in failing to loan
$37,500 to Plaintiffs to purchase 110 additional cattle, as promised, to increase their income to
enable them to buy their land back under the option to purchase. The Plaintiffs would not have
had the catastrophic cattle losses they experienced if the $70,000 operating loan had been made
by the bank, because the Plaintiffs would have been able to move their hay twenty miles to feed
their livestock. Plaintiff, Ronnie Long, testified that had the bank made the operating loan as
agreed, prior to the cattle losses, the cattle losses would have been prevented. He also testified
that the loan to buy 110 additional cattle would have increased Plaintiffs’ income. These were
questions of fact for the jury to resolve, and the jury resolved these questions against the bank.

The Loan Agreement (Exh. 6) and the Lease With Option to Purchase (Exh. 7)
were both signed December 5, 1996. The testimony of Ronnie Long was clear and
uncontroverted at trial. He testified that the bank breached the Loan Agreement (Exh. 6) right
after it was signed. The bank breached the implied contract covenant of good faith and fair
dealing by failing to timely make a complete application to the BIA to increase the percent of
BIA guarantee, by failing to timely make the $70,000 operating loan, as promised, to enable the
Longs to feed and care for their cattle, by failing to timely make an emergency loan of up to
$40,000 to preserve collateral and get feed to the Longs’ cattle as authorized by the BIA and
25 CFR 103.22, and by failing to make the cattle purchase loan, as promised. Ronnie Long
testified based on his years of experience caring for cattle, that if the bank had loaned him the
$70,000 operating money or an emergency protection loan in December of 1996, he could then

have moved his hay 20 miles from the fields where it was baled to the winter pastures where the
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cattle were located some 20 miles away, and the cattle would have survived the winter weather.
The jury apparently agreed.
Ronnie Long testified that his cattle died in winter storms in late January and early -

February of 1997. He testified that 230 cows and 260 yearlings died. The death losses were

~ verified by the FEMA inspectors (Exh. 14).

Thus, the evid_e_nce is clear that the Longs’ damages, caused by the bank’s breach
of _contract'and covenant of good faith, happened in late January and early February of 1997. The.

losses continued each year thereafter because the cows that died would have continued to -

| produce calf crops each year after 1996.

6) Based on the trigl evidence, it is clear that prejudgmeﬁt interest should begin to
accrue on F ebrﬁafy 1, 1997, because that is when the Longs suffered the léssl or damage caused
by the bank’s breach oflcontract and the covenant of good faith.

7 The Longs claiméd damages each year for 1997 through 2002, in the total amount

of $1,236,792 (Exh. 23). The jury awarded damages of $750,000. Thus, it appears that the jury

awarded the Longs the damages they claimed for 1997, 1998, 1999, 2000, aﬁd part of 2001, as

follows:
1997 _ $174,856
1998 87,972
1999 183,634 -
2000 244 814
2001 58,724
$750,000

. —-\‘-.
Interest accrues at the Category B rate of 10% as specified in SDCL 54-3-16. The mterest

accrued on the damages of $750,000 as shown on Attachment A is §367,210. | -



WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs move the Court to include in the judgment damages of
$750,000 and accrued judgment prejudgment interest of $367,210.
Respectfully submitted this _ 4f day of January, 2003.

BANGS, McCULLEN, BUTLER,
FOYE & SIMMONS, L.L.P.

BY: W i LHn é”
JAMES P. HURLEY
Attomeys for Plaintiffs
818 St. Joe St.; P.O. Box 2670
Rapid City, SD 57709-2670
(605) 343-1040 (phone)
(605) 343-1503 (fax)

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned hereby certifies that he served a copy of the Plaintiffs” Motion to Include
Interest in the Judgment upon the person herein next designated, all on the date below shown, by
depositing a copy thereof in the United States mail at Rapid City, South Dakota postage prepaid,
in an envelope addressed to said addressee, to wit:

Mr. David A. Von Wald
Attomey at Law

P.O. Box 468

Hoven, SD 57450

which address is the last address of the addressee known to the subscriber.
Dated this 2% day of January, 2003.

70 X (L/&f//{exf 2

JAMES P. HURLEY
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INTEREST ACCRUAL - COMPUTATIONS

Principal and Interest Interest Principal

1997 $ 309,769 $134,913 $174,856
1998 141,680 53,708 87,972
1999 268,859 85,225 183,634
2000 325,846 81,032 244 814
2001 71,056 12,332 58,724
$1.117,.210 $367,210 $750,000
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CHEYENNE RIVER SIOUX TRIBAL COURT IN CIVIL COURT
CHEYENNE RIVER SIOUX TRIBE
CHEYENNE RIVER INDIAN RESERVATION
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LONG FAMILY LAND AND CATTLE
COMPANY, INC.-RONNIE AND LILA LONG,

Plaintiffs,
PLAINTIF_FS’ REPLY TO
VS. DEFENDANT BANK OF HOVEN
N/K/A PLAINS COMMERCE
EDWARD AND MARY MACIEJEWSKI BANK’S OPPOSITION TO INCLUDING
and RALPH H. AND NORMA I. PSICKA, INTEREST ON TEE JURGMENT
and THE BANK OF HOVEN,
R-120-99

Defendants.

******************************************************************************

Plaintiffs, Long Family Land and Cattle Company, Inc. and Ronnie and Lila Long (the
Longs), respond to the Opposition of the Bank of Hoven n/k/a Plains Commerce Bank (the Bank)
to the Longs” Motion for the Court to include in the judgment the amount of prejudgment
interest, as follows:

A. Prejudgment Inierest:

L. The Bank argues in paragraph 1 of the Bank’s Opposition that the Court should
not include prejudgment interest in the judgment because Longs’ damages were intangible. This
argument has no merit because the Longs did not even claim any intangible damages. SDCL
21-1-13.1 defines intangible damages, and states: “intangible damages such as pain and
suffering, emotional distress, loss of consortium, injury to credit, reputation or financial standing,
loss of enjoyment of life or loss of society and companionship.” The Longs did not make any

claim to the jury for such intangible damages.
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The Longs’ claim for damages was based on cattle that died mid-January 1997,
through early February 1997. Cattle are, of course, tangible property. Defendant’s trial exhibits
show that cattle have tangible value. The Bank’s financial statement for the Longs shows that
the Longs owned 410 cows worth $750 each for a tangible value of $307,500, and 275 calves
worth $200 each for a tangible value of $55,000. Thus, the Bank’s argument that the Longs’
damages were “intangible,” and therefore interest should not be allowed on Longs’ damages, hasr
no merit.

The Bank also argues in paragraph 1 of its Opposition, that the interrogatory
submitted to the jury concerning whether interest should be added to the judgment, did not
require the jury to “calculate when the damages were incurred and the amount when they are
calculable.” This argument is also without merit.

The South Dakota Supreme Court has held that plaintiffs are entitled under SDCL
21-1-13.1 to prejudgment interest for economic losses such as medical care and lost wages
sustained prior to trial. Miller v. Hernandez, 520 N.W.2d 266 (S.D. 1994). The Supreme Court
has held that after SDCL 21-1-13.1 was enacted in 1990, prejudgment interest on damages
awarded by a jury to a plaintiff is mandatory. “Prejudgment interest is now mandatory, not

discretionary.” Alvine v. Mercedes-Benz of North America, 2001 SD 3, 929, 620 N.W.2d 608,

614. Prejudgment interest is allowed from “the day that the loss or damaged occurred.” Fritzel

v. Roy Johnson Const., 1999 S.D. 59, Y12, 594 N.W.2d 336, 339 (quoting SDCL 21-1-13.1).
SDCL 21-1-13.1 provides that when the jury awards a party damages, that party

“is entitled to recover interest thereon.” Prejudgment interest is mandatory, not discretionary.
The Bank’s argument is that the jury verdict concerning interest should have

- required the jury to determine when the loss occurred. The applicabie statute does not support
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this argument. SDCL 21-1-13.1 provides: “If there is a question of fact as to when the loss or
damage occurred, prejudgment interest shall commence on the date specified in the verdict or ‘
decision. . .. If there is a question of fact as to when the loss or damage occurred, the date of

loss may be determined by the jury in its verdict, or by the trial judge in his verdict.

In thié case, however, there was no issue of when th.e Longs’ claimed damage or
loss occurred. The testimony o-‘f Ronnie Long \%fas qlear and ﬁncontroverted. The Longs" cattle
died in mid-J anuary and early February of 1997. The Bank did not produce any testimony or
exhibit.s'that contradictgd Ronnie Longs’ testimony as to the date of the Longs’ ciaimed loss of
cattle.

The verdict form concerning whether interest should be added to the judgrﬁent did
not require the jury to determine the date of Longs’ loss, because there was no queétion of fact as -
to when the loss of damage.‘ occurred. Thus, SDCL 21;1—13.1 does not require the jury to
det’érmine the date of loss.

In addition, the jury verdict form concerning whether interest should be added to
the judgment was shown to Bank’s cduﬁsel before it went to the jury. The Bank did not object to
the jury form, and did not request that the jufy form require the jury to determine the date éf the
' loss.

Also, SDCL 21-1-13.1 requires_the Court, and ndt the jury, to compute the
interest. The statute ,provides: *“The court shall computé and #ward t_he interest provided in this
section and shall include such intefest in the judgment in thé éame manner as it taxes costs.” The

South Dakota Supreme Court has approved the trial court detennining the date of loss and

| computihg the interest under SDCL 21-1-13.1. Fritzel v. Roy Johnson Const., 594 N.W.2d 336 7

(S.D. 1999).



The statute provides that the date of loss may be determined “in the verdict or
decision” of the court. There is no question that the trial court, by its decision, has the authority
to establish the date of loss in calculating the prejudgment interest, in accordance with the
evidence presented at trial. This is especially true when, as in this case, no issue was raised by
the Bank at _trial as to the date of Longs’ loss.

2. The Bank argues in paragraph 2 of the Bank’s Opposition that it is speculation to
try and determine how the jury decided the damages of $750,000, and therefore, the Court cannot
calculate the interest to add to the judgment. This argument is also without merit because under
the statute, SDCL 21-1-13.1, it makes no difference how the jury arrived at its decision to award
the Longs damages of $750,000.

As discussed above, there was no issue of when the Longs’ cattle died; the only
issue was whether the Bank was liable for the loss. The jury determined this question in favor of
the Longs and against the Bank. Thus, the Bank is liable for $750,000 of the Longs’ cattle losses
which happened in late January and early February of 1997. Under the statute, it really makes no
difference on which cause of action the jury determined the Bank lable for. such loss. The jury
determined that the Bank breached the Loan Agreement (Jury Interrogatory One), that the Bank
intentionally discriminated against the Longs based solely on their status as Indians or tribal
members in the Lease with Option to Purchase (Jury Interrogatory Four), and that the Bank acted
in bad faith when it attempted to gain the increased guarantee from the BIA as required by the
Loan Agreement (Jury Interrogatory Five). The Bank is correct that it is impossible to determine
which one cause of action, or perhaps all of these causes of action, that the jury relied on to reach
its decision that the Bank is liable to the Longs for $750,000 of the Longs’ damages. However,

under the statute, it makes no difference.




Once the jury decides on the amount of the damages, and there is no question of
fact as to when the loss or damage occurred, the Court shall calculate the interest “from the day
that the loss or damage occurred, at the Category B rate specified in § 54-3-16” (10%). SDCL
21-1-13.1.

3. The Bank argues in paragraph 3 of the Bank’s Opposition, that even though the
Longs’ cattle died in late January and early February of 1997, “interest would not start on the
date of their loss.” The Bank argues, as to the 277 yearlingé that died in January of 1997, the
Longs did not plan to sell the yearlings until October of 1997, thus the loss of the yearlings
should not be recognized until then, and interest should not be recognized until then, and interest
should not begin until then. As to the 230 cows that died in January of 1997, the Bank argues
that the Longs did not intend to sell the cows, thus, there should be no prejudgment interest
added to the judgment at all.

It is obvious that these arguments‘ignore the command of SDCL 21-1-13.1, which
provides: “Any person who is entitled to recover damages . . . is entitled to recover interest

thereon from the day that the loss or damage occurred. . . . It is clear that interest begins on “the

day that the joss or damage occurred,” not, as the Bank argues, on the day that Longs planned to

sell the catile.

4. In paragraph 4 of the Bank’s Opposition, the Bank argues that the Longs’
damages are “speculative in nature for 1997 and 1998, because such damages include 100 head
of cows to be purchased by a loan of $37,500 that the Bank promised to make to the Longs on
December 5, 1996, in the Loan Agreement (Exh. 6). The Bank argues that the Bank did not have

to make this loan unless the “guarantees were increased by the BIA.”




The Bank’s arguments are factually incorrect, contradict the testimony of the
bank’s witness, and are essentially arguments to the jury. The jury has decided against the Bank.
At trial, Bank’s witness and officer, Charles Simon, testified on cross-examination that the
Bank’s promise to loan the Longs $37,500 to purchase 110 cattle set out in the Loan Agreement
(Exh. 6) was to be a direct loan from the Bank of the Longs, and was not dependent on approval
by the BIA. In a letter to Dennis Huber, ND/SD Indian Business Development Center, Charles
Simon for the Bank stated that the loan promised by the Bank to the Longs to buy 110 cattle, was
a “direct bank loan.” At trial Charles Simon explained that a “direct bank loan” is not dependent
on BIA approval because it is not guaranteed by the BIA. Rather, it is a direct loan by the Bank
to the Longs which could have been made anytime after the Loan Agreement was signed on
December 5, 1996. Charlés .Simon agreed in his trial testimony that the promised cattle loan was
never made to the Longs. He also agreed that the $70,000 annual operating loan the Bank
promised to the Longs in the Loan Agreement (Exh. 6) was never made to the Longs. Without
these loans promised to them by the Bank, the Longs could not perform under the Loan
Agreement or the Lease With Option to Purchase. The Bank’s statements in its Opposition are
contrary to the trial testimony of the Bank’s witness, Charles Simon. The Bank cannot now
claim a version of the facts more favorable to the Bank than the testimony of the Bank’s officer

and Bank’s witness at trial. Waddell v. Dewey County Bank, 471 N.W.2d 591, 595 n.3 (S.D.

1991); Miller v. Stevens, 256 N.W.2d 152, 155 (S.D. 1934); Swee v. Myrl & Roys Paving, Inc.,

283 N.W.2d 570 (S.D. 1979).
Contrary to the trial testimony, the Bank now states on the last three lines of page

3 of its Opposition that: “These cows were o be purchased by a loan he alleges the Bank should

have made of $37,500. The loan agreement only required this loan if the guarantees were




increased by the BIA.” The Bank cannot now refute the trial testimony of its officer and trial

witness, Charles Simon. The Bank’s statement in its Opposition are factually incorrect, and are
essentially a rehash of the Bank’s arguments to the jury.

5. In paragraph 5 of its Opposition, the Bank again restates is arguments set oul in
paragraph 3 of its Opposition, that interest should not accrue on the loss of the yearlings until
they normally would have been sold in October of 1997, and that no interest should be added to
the judgment on the loss of the cows because the Longs never intended to sell the cows. The
Longs’ response to these Bank arguments are the same as the Longs’ response to paragraph 3
above. The Longs’ sustained their loss and damage when their cattle died on or about
February 1, 1997. Under SDCL 21-1-13.1, interest begins from the date of the loss.

6. In paragraph 6 of its Opposition, the Bank argues that interest should not be
compounded in calculating the interest to be added to the judgment. The Bank argues in
paragraph 2 of its Opposition that it is impossible at this point to determine how the jury arrived
at awarding the Longs’ damages of $750,000. The Bank cites no authority for either argument.
As stated above, it legally makes no difference how or why the jury arrived at their decision to
award the Longs damages of $750,000. The trial evidence supports the jury verdict. Whether the
jury relied more on one cause of action or the other is lepally irrelevant. The jury made its
decision to award damages to the Longs of $750,000 based on their loss of cattle, and the trial
testimony of Ronnie Long was clear and uncontroverted that the Longs suffered the loss of their
cattle in late January and early February of 1997. Then on cross-examination, Ronnie Long again
reiterated his direct testimony. Bank counsel asked Ronnie Long, isn’t it correct that most of

your cattle died in mid to late January of 1997, and Ronnie answered, yes.
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Taken together, the jury award of $750,000, and the date that the Longs’ cattle

died in late January and early February of 1997, means that under SDCL 21-1-13.1 interest

should begin to accrue on the jury award of $750,000 from and after February 1, 1997.

The Bank mentions in paragraph 6 of its Opposition that compound interest

should not be used in calculating the amount of interest to be added to the judgment. The Bank
cites no authority for this position. As the Court is aware, compounding interest is an acceptable
practice in computing interest. Every aﬁoﬁization statement of monthly or annual payments
involves compounding of interest where the term runs over a period of years. There is nothing
unfair or illegal about the method of calculating interest as shown on Attachment A to the
Plaintiffs’ Motion to Include Interest in the Judgment.

As to the Bank’s argument that interest should not be compounded, the Longs
note that the Bank has compounded interest as a matter of usual business practice with the Longs
over the years. For example, every time the principal and accrued interest of an existing
promissory note was paid by an advance from another note, or. by rolling it into a new promissory
note, the accrued interest on the old note was rolled into the new note as principal, and interest
accrued on interest. An example of this is shown on the Bank’s comment sheets dated Apnl 7,
1997 (Def. Exh. 1). Also, the Bank’s letter dated January 16, 1997, shows a debt of $343,874
owed by the Longs to the Bank, that the Bank agreed to reschedule into a new note over a 20-
year term (Exh. 10). The Bank’s letter dated December 12, 1996, shows that the new principal
balance after adding accrued interest of $71,126, made a new balance of $415,000 for the new
note. Interest at 9.25% accrued on the previously éccrued interest amount of $71,126 (Exh. 8).

Plaintiffs Longs, in Plaintiffs’ Motion to Include Interest in the Judgment, propose

that interest be calculated as set out in Attachment A to their Motion. Plaintiffs believe that the
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‘Court could calculate interest as shown on Attachment A to'the Motion, and that such calculation

of interest would be in accordance with the verdicts of the jury and the testimony of this case.
In view of the Bank’s argument concerning compound interest, however, the

Court could calculate interestin a different manner. Accordingly, the Longs propose the

following alternate method of calculating interest. The Longé propose the following calculation
of interest on the jury verdict of $750,000, without compounding interest, from and after the date
of Longs’ loss, February 1, 1997:

- $ 750,000 date of loss 2/1/97
10%  1interest rate Category B, § 54-3-16

75,000  interest accrued 2/1/97 to 2/1/98
75,000 interest accrued 2/1/98 to 2/1/99
75,000 interest accrued 2/1/99 to 2/1/00
75,000 interest accrued 2/1/00 to 2/1/01-
75,000 interest accrued 2/1/01 to 2/1/02
75,000 interest accrued 2/1/02 to 2/1/03
$1.200,000 as of 2/1/03
_ ' Afler 2/1/03, interest accrues at $205.48 per day
($75,000 = 365 = $205.48)
Also, the Bank complains that the Category B rate of SDCL 54-3-16 is too high. -
Rather, the Bank argues that the interest rate of 8.5% set out in the Lease With Option to
Purchase should apply. Where the jury determined that the Bank breached the Loan Agreement
(Jury Interrogatory Six) and that the Bank’s breach prevented the Longs from perfofming under
the Lease With Option to .Purchase (Exh. 7) (Jury Interrogatory Two), the Longs submit that the
Bank should not be permitted to benefit from the lower interest rate of 8.5% set out in the Lease

With Option to Purchase, without considering the higher interest rates which are part of the -

promissory notes set out in the Loan Agreement (Exh. 6).
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It is important to note the interest rates of the promissory notes listed.in the Loan
Agreement (Exh. 6), which are part of the Loan Agreement that the jury has determined that the
Bank breached (Jury Interrogatory Six). These rates of interest are all part of the contract that
was breached by the Bank, and are therefore contract rates of interest agreed upon by the parties.
Note #98181, which compounds interest on interest, has a rate of interest of 9.5%; Note #98179
has a rate of interest of 10%; Note #98809 has a rate of interest of 9.5%; and Note #98262 has a
rate of interest of 11.25%. Some of these notes have provisions for variable rates of interest. All
of these promissory notes are listed in the Loan Agreement (Exh. 6) and are the contract rates of
interest. The average rate of interest on these notes is 12.19%. When the 8.5% interest rate set
out in the Lease With Option to Purchase is factored in, the average interest rate is 10.35%.

Therefore, the Court could consider all of the various interest rates involved in the
Loan Agreement and the Lease With Option to Purchase, or the Court could simply use the
interest rate set out in SDCL 21-1-13.1, which is the Category B rate specified in SDCL 54-3-16
(10%).

The foregoing facts and authorities support the conclusion that this Court could
include in the judgment interest of $75,000 per year, which is 10% per annum on the juryAaWard
of $750,000, from and after the date of loss of February 1, 1997, without compound interest. The
judgment should include the jury award of $750,000, and in addition, the judgment should
include the interest accrued of $450,000 to F ebruary 1, 2003, plus per diem interest accrual of
$205.48 per day after February 1, 2003,

B. Conclusion:
1. The Longs’” damages are based on their loss of cattle which are tangible, not

intangible damages.

10




2. Interest should begin on February 1, 1997, because, according to the clear and

uncontroverted testimony at trial, that is the date that the Longs’ cattle died.

3. The Court should determine the date of Longs’ loss or damage, which was on or
about February 1, 1997, and calculate the amount of interest to be included in the judgment.

4. The jury awarded the Longs $750,000 of their claimed loss or damages. The loss
or damage occurred on or about Fe.bruary 1, 1997. In calculating the interest to include in the
judgment, the Court could calculate the interest as shown on Attachment A to the Plaintiffs’
Motion to Include Interest in fhe Judgment, or as an alternative, the Court could simply compute
interest at 10% each year for the six years that have passed since the Longs’ cattle died
February 1, 1997. This would avoid the compound interest issue raised by the bank. The interest

calculation would be:

$ 750,000 date of loss 2/1/97

75,000 2/1/97 to 2/1/98 -

75,000 2/1/98 to 2/1/99

75,000 2/1/99 to 2/1/00

75,000 2/1/00 to 2/1/01 .
75,000 2/1/01 to 2/1/02 -
75,000 2/1/02 to 2/1/03

- $1,200,000
5. The contract rate of interest involves seven different interest rates on the seven

notes listed in the Loan Agreement, which range from 9.5% to 11.75%, as well as the 8.5% rate
in the Lease With Option to Purchase. The average interest rate is 10.35%. Because of the
various contract rates involved, some of which are variable, the Court should simply use the

Category B rate specified in the statute of 10%,
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Dated this :25— day of February, 2003.

BANGS, McCULLEN, BUTLER,
FOYE & SIMMONS, L.L.P.

- 7

sY: e/ Ltz

JAMES P. HURLEY /

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

818 St. Joe St.; P.O. Box 2670

Rapid City, SD 57709-2670

{605) 343-1040 (phone)

(605) 343-1503 (fax)

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned hereby certifies that he served a copy of the Plaintiffs’ Reply to
Defendant Bank of Hoven n/k/a Plains Commerce Bank’s Opposition to Including Interest on the
Judgment upon the person herein next designated, all on the date below shown, by depositing a
copy thereof in the United States mail at Rapid City, South Dakota, postage prepaid, in an
envelope addressed to said addressee, to wit:

Mr. David A. Von Wald
Attorney at Law

P.0O. Box 468

Hoven, SD 57450

which address is the last address of the addressee known to the subscriber.

Dated this_ /¢ day of February, 2003.

. ) ) 7
htie P Lhalzen
JAMES P. HURLEY !
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PLAINTIFFS DAVAGES

1997

230 bred cows died January & February 1997 (3 $620 =
260 mixed steer & heifer yearlings died

January & Febroary 1997 @ $700 =
10 yearling cuils @z $700 =

CRP Annual Pavment =

-FEMA Payment

Operating Expense (34%)

$142,600.00

132,000.00
7,000.00
400000
$335,600.00
43 000.00
$287,600.00
-112,744.00
$174,856.00

PLAINTIFF'S |

EXHIBIT

23
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230 bred cows died January & February 1997
' @ 90% calf crop = 207 cajves which would
have been born in 1998 L
207 yearlings would have been born in 1997 g $600 =
Operating Expenses (34%6)

CRP Annual Payment =
- 1998 '

$124,200.00
242,228 00

¥ sL972.00

$.87,972.00

=Tl B o B TST [
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1999

330 bred cows (@ 90% calf crop = 297 calves born 1999
207 yearlings would have been born in 1998 (@ $700 = $144,900.00

Operating Expenses (34%) -49.206.00

$ 95,634.00
FSA Payment = 23,000.00
Use of Land = 05,000.00

$183.634.00




]
=
=

330 cows @ 90% calf crop = 297 calves that
would have been born in 2000
297 yearlings would have been born in 1999 @ $800 =  $237,600.00

Operating Expenses (34%) -80,786.00

$156,814.00
FSA Farm Program Payment = 23,000.00
Use of Land = 05.000.00

$244,814.00

2000 $244814.00  Loss
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330 cows @ 90% calf crop = 297 calves that

would have been born in 2001
297 yearlings would have been born in 2000 @ $800 =
Operating Expenses (34%)

FSA Paymentr=
Use of Land =

2001

$237,600.00
-80,784.00
$156,816.00
23,000.00
55,000.00
$234.816.00

$234,816.00

Loss

NOLES IVE KR




e m mmee e e L I TN T S WU B U S W B S NPT DD ATd Ledoio Fo o g

Land
<
=
r

330 cows @ 90% catl crop = 297 calves that
would have been born in 2002 (@ $420
330 x $420 = $138,600.00
297 yearlings would huve boes boim in 2991 (L 8Ta0 = 207,900.00
Operating Expenses (34%) -117,800.00
$228.700.00
FSA Payment = 23,000.00
Use of Land = 50.000.00
Replace Fences = _9.0400.0¢

Sununary

1997 $ 174,955
§964 87,972
1999 183,634
2000 244,814
2001 234,816
1002 310,700

$1,236,792

_ . TOTAL P.d
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CHEYENNE RIVER SIOUX TRIBAL COURT )
CHEYENNE RIVER SIOUX TRIBE : SS

CHEYENNE RIVER INDIAN RESERVATION )
LONG FAMILY LAND and CATTLE
COMPANY - RONNIE and LILA LONG
Plaintiff
Vs. NOTICE OF ENTRY
' OF ORDER

EDWARD and MARY MACIEJEWSKI,
RALPH and NORMA J. PSICKA,
And THE BANK of HOVEN, nka PLAINS COMMERCE BANK
Defendant Case No.: C-120-99

TO:  David A. Von Wald and Kenneth E. Jasper and James P. Hurley

YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that a ORDER was entered in the above-entitled
matter and entered in the office of the Clerk of Court for the Cheyenne River Sioux
Indian Reservation, on or about the 97™ day of January, 2003 as more fully appears by

the attached copy of same ORDER. .
CHEYENNE RIVER SIOUX TRIBE
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I, Dale Charging Cloud, do hereby certify that I served a true and correct copy of the

foregoing ORDER on the persons next designated by mailing same by first class mail,
postage prepaid, addressed as follows:

Mr. David A. Von Wald Mr. Kenneth E. Jasper
Attorney at Law Attorney at Law

PO Box 468 PO Box 2093

Hoven, SD 57450-0468 Rapid City, SD 57709-2093
Mr. James P. Hurley

Attorney at Law

PO Box 2670

Rapid City, SD 57709-2670

Dated this 07" day of January, 2003. Oﬁ .
W Chingung,Claca

DALE CHARGINGCLOUD, CLERK
CHEYENNE RIVER SIOUX TRIBE




CHEYENNE RIVER SIOUX TRIBAL COURT
CHEYENNE RIVER SIOUX TRIBE
CHEYENNE RIVER SIOU INDIAN RESERVATION

LONG FAMILY LAND AND CATTLE
COMPANY- RONNIE AND LILA LONG,

Plaintiffs,
VSs.
EDWARD AND MARY MACIEJEWSKI,
RALPH AND NORMA J. PSICKA,
And THE BANK OF HOVEN, nka PLAINS
COMMERCE BANK,

Defendants.

IN CIVIL COURT

IN GENERAL SESSION

R-120-99

ORDER

The Defendant Bank has moved this Court for judgment notwithstanding the

verdict, or in the alternative a new trial, on several causes of action asserted in the

Plaintiffs’ complaint and tried to a seven-member jury' on December 6 and 11, 2002.

This Court dismissed several counts of the complaint, including one for fraud, one for

failure of consideration, one pleading an unconscionable contract, and one praying for

rescission of contract, after submission of the Plaintiffs> case, but permitted four counts-

breach of contract, bad faith, discrimination, and violation of self-help remedies- to be

submitted to the jury.? The Defendant’s counterclaim for unlawful entry and detainer

was heard by the Court at the same time as the legal issues were tried to the jury. The jury

returned its verdict in the form of six interrogatories finding for the Plaintiffs on the

causes of action alleging breach of contract, bad faith, and discrimination and finding for

! Although the Court impaneled six jurors and one alternate in this case, the Partics
during the trial stipulated that all seven jurors could deliberate the case.

% The Court also dismissed, prior to trial, the count of the complaint alleging fraud in the
inducement of a personal representative’s deed from the estate of Kenneth L. Long to the
* Bank prior to trial on the ground that this count was an attempt to collaterally attack state

court probate proceedings and should have been brought in the state court.
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the Defendants on the count alleging violation of self-help remedies. The jury also issued
an advisory verdict on the issue of whether the Defendant Bank’s breach of contract
prevented the Plaintiffs from performing on a Jease with an option to purchase, finding
that it did. That verdict informs the Court with regard to the counterclaim of the Bank to
evict the Plaintiffs from certain real property it had acquired title to in the probate
proceedings of Kenneth L. Long. The jury also returned a verdict for damages in the
amount of $750,000 and directed the Court to award interest on that amount. The
Defendant Bank timely filed its motion for JINOV and for a new trial on all counts the
jury returned against it. This order will also address the Defendant Bank’s counterclaim
seeking to evict the Plaintiffs from certain fee lands within the Cheyenne River
reservation.

The Defendant Bank’s first argument is that the finding that it breached a loan
agreement (Plaintiff’s Exhibit 6) is legally insufficient because the loan agreement is not
a legally-enforceable contract because the Defendants failed to give consideration.
Although this defense was not pled by the Defendant Bank prior to trial, it did make an
oral motion to conform its pleadings to the evidence submitted and that motion was
granted by the Court. The Defendant Bank also moved for a directed verdict on the issue
and the motion is therefore appropriate. The issue of want of consideration was therefore
appropriately submitted to the jury and is therefore now resolvable by the Court.

In general, a Court should not overturn the verdict of a jury if sufficient evidence
was submitted to the jury so that reasonable minds could disagree about the evidence. See

Dunes Hospitality v. Country Kitchen, 623 NW2d 484 (SD 2001). As the South Dakota

Supreme Court has stated with regard to judgments nov:




Thus, the grounds asserted in support of the directed verdict motion are brought
before the trial court for a second review. We review the testimony and evidence
in a light most favorable to the verdict or the nonmoving party, "then without
weighing the evidence fwe] must decide if there is evidence which would have
supported or did support a verdict.

Matter of Estate of Holan, 621 NW2d 588, 591 (SD 2000).

BREACH OF CONTRACT ACTION

The Bank makes a strong argument that the loan agreement that the jury found it
breached is non-enforceable because of a lack of consideration by the Plaintiffs. If a
contract is lacking in consideration, a party not giving consideration cannot recover for a
breach of that contract. At first blush, it is difficult to see what consideration the Plaintiffs
gave in exchange for the promises made by the Bank in the loan agreement, Trial Exhibit
6. The Bank had received a personal representative’s deed to the land owned by Kenneth
Long that secured the loans to Long Family Land and Cattle Company. The Plaintiffs
owed the Bank the amounts reflected in the loan agreement and the agreement appears to
be a method for the Bank to re-amortize the payments on the outstanding owed the Bank
by the Defendants. Admittedly, the Bank was attempting to gain an increased guarantee '
from the BIA and needed the Longs cooperation in seeking this, but that “consideration”
is not anything the Longs were giving up.

However, the Longs still occupied the land and were receiving the CRP i)aymeﬁts
on the land. It is impossible to gauge whether valid consideration was given by the

Plaintiffs for the loan agreement without also viewing the lease with the option to

purchase, which the Court has already ruled, in denying the Defendant’s motion for
sumimary judgment on its counterclaim for eviction, was a related document under the

integrated document doctrine. See Battery Steamship Corp. v. Refineria Panama S.A.,




P

513 ¥.2d 735, 738 n.3 (2d Cir. 1975). It is possible thaf the jury found consideration in

_.the fact that the Longs were agreeing to continue the operation of their cattle ranch in .

order to pay the entire amount of principal plus interest instead of having the Bank call
the loans and collect the guarantee from the BIA in an amount substantially less than

what was owed by the Plaintiffs. In éddition, the Longs agreed to assign the CRP

" payments to the Bank‘as part of the plarn to permit them to get on their feet again and

attempt to regain title to the land that was in the Long family name for many years. The

Court cannot conclude that there is no evidence that suppoﬁs the jury’s verdict and

therefore denies the motion for judgment notwithstanding the verdict on the claim that

consideration was wanting.

The Bank also contends thai even if considgratibn existed, no evidence was
suﬁnﬁtted to the jﬁry to support the Plaintiffs’ claim that the Bank 1Drrteached the loan
agreement. rThe Bank contends that by the ﬁme it was required td perform under thé loan |
z;.g'reement- late winter of 1997- the Plaintﬁ'fs had suffered substantial livestock losses due
to the catastrophic winter of 96-97 and céul& not have pOssibly" met the loan paynienfs
under the Joan agreement. The Bank also contends that the only thlng it promised to do in
thé loan agreément was to seck an increase in the BIA guarantee, which it did aqd the
BIA delayed action on the request, and the advance of operating monies of $70,000 was
contingent upon the increased guarantee by the BIA.which never came.

The Plaintiffs” theory at trial was that the guarantee of $70,000 in annual
operating loans was breached and that the advances were not contingent upon the
'i‘nc.rease by the BIA in the ggarantee: The Plaintiffs advanced the theory that had the

Bank advanced the $70,000 in opera‘ging costs torit they would not have had the
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catastrophic cattle losses they experienced because they would have gotten feed to their
livestock.? It was undisputed that the Bank did not advance the $70,000 referred to in the
loan agreement and the Court believes the issue of whether that advance was contingent
upon the increase in the BIA guarantee is not clear from the face of the loan agreement
and was therefore a jury issue. The jury appflrently felt that the Bank breached the
promise to advance the operating costs and this Court cannot substitute its opinion for
that of the jury when evidence does exist to support the verdict. The loan agreement is
ambiguous on its face on the issue of whether fhe annual advance of the $70,000 in
operating monies was contingent upon the BIA improving the increase in the guarantee
and that ambiguity must be construed against the drafter of the document- in this case, the
Bank.

The Bank also seems to be contending in its motion that it should have been
excused from performing the loan agreement after the winter of 96-97 because the
catastrophic livestock losses suffered by the Longs precluded them from paying the notes
that were consolidated into the loan agreement. This is a legal issue that the Bank did not
ask for a jury instruction on and was not therefore properly preserved at trial. Even had it
been proposed as a defense, however, the success of this defense would depend upon the
jury accepting the premise that the Bank had complied with the loan agreement up to the
point when the Longs lost their livestock. The Plaintiffs’ theory of the case appeared to
be that the operating loan, had it been made prior to the cattle losses, would have

prevented those losses and this was a question of fact for the jury to resolve.

? There was conflicting testimony whether the Longs had ever asked the Bank for
operating monies to move hay to the livestock or to move the livestock, but this was a
jury issue that was apparently resolved against the Bank.




-

BAD FAITH CAUSE OF ACTION

The jury also returned a verdict finding that the Bank acted in bad faith when it
attempted to gain the increase in the guarantee from the BIA. The Bank contends that
there is no evidence to support this conclusion and the verdict should therefore be set
aside. Although there is evidence from the 1:ecord that the BIA was somewhat derelict in
delaying a decision on the guarantee until afier the Longs had suffered substantial cattle
losses," the undisputed evidence presentéd to the jury was that the Bank failed to respond
to a request from the BIA to correct the submission for the increased guarantee in
accordance with federal regulations attached to the letter notifying the Bank and the
Longs of the insufficient a{pplication. The Bank decided not to respond to the request
because it apparently had concluded that with the Longs’ cattle losses thelLbngs were no
longer able to make the payments on the loan agreement. Admittedly, the Bank did
proceed to loan more monies to the Longs and to re-amortize additional loans. However,
the jury must have decided that this was not a substitute for the $70,000 in operating
monies the Longs needed in order to survive the winter of 96-97.

'The Bank argues that the bad faith claim is subsumed into the cause of action
alleging breach of contract and a separate cause of action should not have been tried to
the jury on this issue. The Court believes that the bad faith claim relates to the failure of
the Bank to follow through with the promise to seek an increase in the BIA guarantee,

while the breach of contract action relates to the failure of the Bank to make the operating

* The BIA took almost two months before it denied the Bank’s request for an increase in
the BIA guarantee because it was not appropriately submitted. The record is not clear
regarding who submitted the documentation for the increase- the Bank or the Cheyenne
River Sioux Tribe’s Finance Office- but it is clear in that the Bank did not respond to the
increase for a correct application.




loans as promised in the loan agreement. These are discrete claims and both impacted the
ultimate inability of the Longs to purchase back the land of Kenneth Long under the lease
with an option to purchase.
DISCRIMINATION

The third verdict returned against tl}e Defendant Bank related to the claim of the
Longs for discrimination in the lending practices of the Bank. During the trial a document
was admitted into evidence, without objection, wherein the Vice-President of the Bank
advised the Longs that the Bank would not sell them the land they obtained from the
personal representative of the estate of Kenneth Long by contract for deed because of the
“jurisdictional problems if the Bank ever had to foreclose on this land when it is
contracted or leased to an Indian owned entity on the reservation.” (PI’s Exhibit 4). This
letter was dispatched after the Parties had apparently reached an understanding that the
Bank would resale the Longs the land on a contract for deed. The Bank then proceeded to
sell a parcel of the land to the Maciejewskis, non-Indians, on a contract for deed. The
Court determined that his was prima facie evidence that the Bank denied the Longs the
privilege of contracting for a deed because of their status as tribal members and thus
submitted the count to the jury for determination over the objection of the Bank, which
timely made a motion for a direct verdict on that issue and objected to the jury instruction
and interrogatory on the issue.

The Bank reiterates its argument that this Court has no jurisdiction over a claim of

discrimination arising under federal law against a non-Indian entity. Federal law prohibits

any entity that receives the benefit of federal financial assistance from discriminating

against any person in the delivery of services. See 42 U.S.C. 2000d. This statute has been




held to prevent a bank from “redlining” a certain area because of the racial composition
of the residents of that area. See Laufinan v, Oakley Bldg and Loan, 408 F.Supp 489 (SD
Ohio 1976). The Longs are Indian residents of the Cheyenne River Sioux Indian
reservation who claimed that the Bank denied them a privilege of contracting for a deed
that was granted non-Indians.*There was uncontroverted evidence during the trial that the
Bank was receiving the benefit of Depattment of Interior guarantees and CRP payments I\
under federal programs and thus the Bank appears to be covered by federal law.
The Bank contends, however, that even if a prima facie case of discrimination

was demonstrated, this Court lacks the jurisdiction to enforce federal civil rights laws

under Nevada v. Hicks, 150 L.Ed. 2d 398, 121 S.Ct 2304(2001). In Hicks the Supreme
Court held that a tribal court lacks the authority to hear claims against state officials or
those acting under the color of state law who allegedly violate the rights preserved
persons under federal law under the provisions of 42 USC 1983. The Defendants argue
that the same logic applies to claims brought against private parties for violations of other
federal laws protecting the rights of individuals to be free of discrimination.

The Court disagrees with the Bank’s argument that this Court lacks the
jurisdiction to enforce federal anti-discrimination laws against non-Indian entities over

which the Court clearly has jurisdiction under the principles laid out in Nevada v: Hicks.

[t is undisputed in this case, and was conceded by the Bank, that the Bank had a

consensual commercial relationship with the Longs, enrolled members of the Cheyenne

* In denying the Bank’s motion for a directed verdict on this issue, the Court stated that it
did not fcel that the mere denial of the contract for deed to the Longs was conclusive
evidence of discrimination and thus instructed the jury that it must find that the Bank’s
decision to deny the contract for deed was based “solely” upon their status as tribal
members, thus permitting the jury to return a verdict for the Bank if it determined that the
Bank had other non-discriminatory reasons to deny the contract for deed.
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